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SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES11

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,
everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the
Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.
Joining me are our committee members, Simcha
Felder, Bob Jackson, Al Vann, Eric Gioia and
Melinda Katz. We also have in the room Council
Member Rosie Mendez and Alan Gerson, whose
districts cover the application that's before us
today. The application we'll be discussing is
commonly referred to as the East Village Lower
Eastside rezoning. That is the only item on
today's agenda. We will ask City Planning to give
their presentation. I've asked them to limit
themselves to 20 minutes. Hopefully they can do
the presentation quicker. We will then have
opening statements from Council Member Mendez and
Gerson. We will then take questions from
committee members. I'm going to ask my committee
members to do one question only and then follow-up
guestions after the public hearing. City Planning
will be staying. Then we will start the public
hearing. We have over 100 speakers signed up at
this point. So I'll ask City Planning to give

their presentation. While they're getting ready,
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let me remind everybody, if you want to speak, you
must see the sergeant-at-arms at the left, fill
out a speaker slip and you should absolutely
indicate whether you're in favor of the proposal
or against. Because when we do the public hearing
aspect, we will call up alternating panels of
those in favor and those against until we reach
the end.

EDITH HSU-CHEN: Good morning,
Council Members. My name is Edith Hsu-Chen. | am
the director of the Manhattan Office of the
Department of City Planning. I'm here with my
colleague Arthur Huh to present to you the East
Village Lower Eastside rezoning proposal. We are
also joined by our partners from the Department of
Housing Preservation and Development. As you may
know, this rezoning proposal originated several
years ago in the community at the grassroots
level. Many concerned residents were alarmed that
the existing zoning, which dates back nearly half
a century to 1961, was permitting the as of right
development of incredibly out of scale
developments that were being and continue to be

constructed in the neighborhood. This city agreed
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that this area was under threat. That these
towers, among tenements, detract from the strong
mid and low rise character of the East Village and
the Lower Eastside neighborhoods. So for nearly
four years now we at the Department of City
Planning have been engaged in a thoughtful and
collaborative process with Community Board 3,
civic groups, residents, business owners, local
elected officials and our counterparts at HPD to
develop a balanced rezoning proposal that supports
two very important goals. The first goal is to
preserve and enhance the built character found
throughout the East Village and Lower Eastside by
replacing the current zoning with contextual

zoning districts. Under this proposal, zoning

will impose for the first time ever in these
neighborhoods, building height limits and other
building bulk controls. The second goal is to
address the community and the city's ongoing need
for housing, and certainly affordable housing, by
identifying appropriate locations for moderate
growth. Under this proposal and also for the

first time in these neighborhoods, the

Inclusionary Housing Program will be made
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available to incentive the development of
affordable housing. The East Village and Lower
East Side rezoning proposal has benefited from
active community and public participation that
helped shape the proposal from its inception. The
proposal before you today in fact is not the same
proposal that as certified in May. In direct
response to requests made to us by Community Board
3 and Council Members Gerson and Mendez, the
department modified the application to include
increased Inclusionary Housing opportunities along
Chrystie Street and along wide avenues north of
Houston Street. We also removed a provision that
would have allowed the return of long absent
commercial storefronts in residential midblocks.
We are delighted to be here today to share with
you this important proposal. Arthur Huh will now
make a brief presentation, about 10 to 15 minutes
max, with more details about the rezoning. Thank

you.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just before

you do that | want to recognize the fact that
we've also been joined by Council Member Larry

Seabrook and Council Member Mike McMahon who is
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now Congressman-elect Mike McMahon.
Congratulations.
COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Chair,
if you don't mind, | have to excuse myself. I'm
chairing a committee next door. I'll be back.
AUTHOR HUH: Thank you and good
morning, Council Members. Generally bounded to
the north by 13th Street, Avenue D and Pitt Street
to the east, Delancey Street and Grand Street to
the south, Third Avenue and Fourth Avenue to the
west, the rezoning area covers approximately 111
clocks in community district 3 and is mapped with
two existing zoning districts. R-72 and C61.
These are both non-contextual zoning districts,
meaning that there is no maximum overall building
height established by the zoning. New development
Is not required to maintain the street wall and
there is a significant gap in the range of
allowable densities depending on use. In both of
these districts, the maximum residential FAR is
3.44 and 6.5 for community facility uses. And in
the existing C-61 district, 6.0 for commercial
uses. This type of zoning permits development as

shown in recent trends and built as of right that
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tends to concentrate bulk in tower-like forms
approaching and/or exceeding 20 stories in areas
where the predominant built fabric is consistently
between 4 and 7 stories and with a very strong
sense of street wall. So we find that the

existing zoning in addition to being nearly 50

years old and in conflict with the established
neighborhood character throughout the rezoning
area, these new buildings are a physical

expression of the existing zoning and raise

specific issues that our comprehensive rezoning
framework seeks to address. We propose a blend of
contextual zoning districts where existing
neighborhood character was consistent throughout
the existing R-72 and C-61 districts and in

selected wide streets with their greater street
widths, more expansive sky exposure, better access
to mass transit, greater variation in the built
character as compared with the other areas. These
higher density districts would be established in
conjunction with the Inclusionary Housing Program,
as a way to work toward our companion goal of
addressing the ongoing need for housing. This

proposal will, for the first time, establish
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maximum building heights of 75 feet or 80 feet
throughout the majority of the area with an
allowance for additional height along these
selected wider streets. In the proposed R7A
districts along the North/South avenues north of
Houston Street and an area below Houston Street,
east of Essex Street, where the streetscape and
height conditions reflect a low to mid rise
character, the rezoning would address the FAR gap
by raising the residential FAR maximum from 3.44
to 4 and lowering the community facility maximum
from 6.5 to 4. Again, where today there is
effectively no building height, the R7A would
establish a maximum overall building height of 80
feet, which could be achieved only after a setback
over a base of between 40 and 65 feet. And as |
will discuss later in the presentation, portions

of these R7A districts are affected by the
proposed zoning amendment as well. In the mid
blocks above Houston Street where streetscape and
height conditions again have a consistent mid rise
character and a very strong sense of street wall,
the proposed R8B districts would address the FAR

gap by raising the residential FAR maximum from
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3.44 to 4 and again lowering the community
facility maximum from 6.5 to 4. Again, today,
where there is no building height, the R8B would
establish a maximum overall height of 75 feet,
which could be achieved only after a setback
between 55 and 60 feet. In these areas, in the
proposed R8B districts, these particular mid block
areas where so many properties are on narrow lots
and sited on narrow streets, there will be an
added layer of protection in terms of contextual
building heights, because of existing zoning rules
applicable to so-called sliver buildings. Most of
the sites in these blocks are on lots with

frontages of less than 45 feet and all of them are
sited on streets which have a street width of 60
feet. So effectively, and according to the sliver
rule, a majority of these sites would in fact be
limited to a maximum of 60 feet on the mid blocks.
In response to community concerns and feedback
about specific mid block areas we also took a look
at whether and how it might be appropriate to
consider other contextual districts throughout the
area, which led us to propose a limited change to

R7B districts. These would be in the three




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES19

successive mid blocks immediately south of
Tompkins Square Park between Avenue A and Avenue
B. Like the R8B, the R7B establishes a maximum
overall building height, where today there is

none, of 75 feet, addresses the FAR gap at an
equalized FAR maximum of 3 as opposed to 4, just
in these three mid blocks. And again, the maximum
building height could be achieved only after a
setback of between 40 and 60 feet. The sliver

rule text that | just mentioned would not apply to
these three mid block areas. So new buildings
would be permitted to achieve the maximum
building. Switching now to the existing C61
districts, we essentially took the same approach
that we did in the residential areas in terms of
thinking about contextual districts successfully

and previously used in earlier rezonings. Because
conditions in these areas, again, establish a very
consistent sense of the neighborhood character in
terms of overall height and scale, we proposed a
C44A district. This is an area with a history of
commercial use with a capacity to retain it. A
C44A is equivalent to the R7A district. That

means in terms of the building envelope
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restrictions and overall building height as well

as the FAR controls. The FAR for residential
maximum would be raised from 3.44 to 4 and lowered
for both community facility and commercial uses to
4. As in the R7A districts and shown here, the
maximum building overall height would be 80 feet,
achievable only after a setback between 40 and 65
feet. In addition to the approach towards the map
changes that we took involving defining contextual
envelopes to closely match the neighborhood
character, we also though about how we could
identify potential areas appropriate for the
encouragement of orderly growth and where we would
incentivize affordable housing development. The
proposal includes areas where moderate increases
in density and envelope restrictions are proposed
in conjunction with the Inclusionary Housing
Program. So in a number of the contextual
districts along the selected wide streets, which

I'll go over now, we propose a mix of R8A, C62A,
C63A with the Inclusionary Housing Program as
indicated on the map and on your handout with the
asterisks. From the start of this proposal it was

clear that housing and particularly affordable
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housing was going to be an important part of this
proposal. So we propose map changes along the
selected streets in conjunction with zoning text
changes, which would introduce the Inclusionary
Housing Program for the first time. So from this
point on we're talking about actions that include
zoning map changes, as well as zoning text
changes. On Houston Street and Avenue D and
portions of Pitt Street where the existing zoning

iIs R72 and Delancey Street and portions of Houston
Street and Second Avenue where the existing zoning
is C61, we propose R8A and C62A. These are
equivalent with regard to the permitted density,
street wall and building heights. The main
difference here being that in the C62A commercial
uses would be permitted to a maximum FAR of 6,
which is the same as it is today. The proposal
would raise the residential maximum FAR from 3.44
to a base maximum of 5.4 through the Inclusionary
Housing Program with residential floor areas set
aside for permanently affordable housing, which
would be up to 20% of the residential floor area.
Developers would be permitted to quality for a 33%

increase in floor area, raising the incentivized
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maximum FAR to 7.2 of residential. With regard to
the street wall and building height restrictions
here, as is typical of all our Inclusionary

Housing Program areas regardless of if, how and to
what extent the bonus floor area is used, the

total resulting floor area must fit within the
contextual regulations as outlined by the
underlying contextual zoning, which in this case
set a 120 foot building height limit over a base

of between 60 and 85 feet. On the west side of
Chrystie Street, which is a wide street that also
faces a park for the length of its stretch in the
rezoning area, we propose an Inclusionary C63A
district. The permitted base residential FAR for
C63Ais 6.5. Through the Inclusionary Housing
Program and setting aide permanently affordable
housing, developers could qualify for the
incentivized FAR maximum of 8.5. And as with the
case in all of our Inclusionary Housing areas, all

of the resulting floor area, whether or not the
bonus is used, must fit within the contextual
envelope requirements of the underlying zoning,
which in this case set a maximum overall building

height of 145 feet for wide street, which this is,
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over a base of between 60 and 102 feet. And as
Edith noted earlier there have been modifications

to the proposal as part of the process. One of

those changes involves bringing the Inclusionary
Housing Program to selected R7A districts. On the
wide streets above Houston Street, which include
Second Avenue, First Avenue, Avenue A and Avenue
C, we proposed establishing the Inclusionary
Housing Program which would increase the permitted
FAR maximum for residential use to a base of 3.45,
which through the program could be increased to
incentivized FAR of 4.6. Again, the resulting

floor area would have to fit within the previously
described R7A envelope of 80 foot maximum building
height over a base of between 40 and 65 feet.

Just noting that in these R7A Inclusionary areas,

as with the other R7A districts that we've

proposed where we are not proposing Inclusionary
Housing, these are just the wide streets, that
resulting total floor area, as with all of our
Inclusionary Housing Programs would have to fit
completely within the building envelope, 80 foot
height limit over a base of 40 to 65. Just to

wrap up with a summary of the unit counts that we
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forecast as of the result of the proposal. With
this proposal, using the Inclusionary Housing
Program the unit counts are estimated to be
increased in the increment of approximately 1,500
total dwelling units, of which approximately 450
would be affordable. That's the proposal. Thank
you very much. We're here to answer any follow-up
guestions you might have.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
First I'd like to call on Council Member Rosie
Mendez, to be followed by Council Member Gerson.

COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you,
Chair Avella and thank you for your leadership in
this committee and in the City Council. | want to
thank my community for being here today and look
forward to hearing your testimony. | thought this
was the most important thing | would do during my
career, up until a few weeks ago when we dealt
with term limits. But it is certainly the most
important thing | will do for my district and for
my community while I'm in office. There is an
invisible line along Houston Street that separates
our communities and Alan Gerson and | share this

rezoned area, about 70% in my district. He and |
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have been working closely together. This is
something that | worked on prior to getting into
the City Council. There are many benefits. It
brings contextual zoning. We won't have out of
scale buildings in our community. But it also
incentivizes building of affordable housing. The
plan is not perfect. There are still

modifications | am looking for. | look forward to
continuing the dialogue with the administration in
terms of some of those things that are important
to me such as an anti-harassment provision and
getting more affordable housing, new units
constructed in our district, which is sorely
needed. Not justin the Lower East Side but in
all of New York City. Thank you and | will be

here all day today. Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

Council Member Gerson?

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: First of

all, I echo the sentiments of my colleague,

Council Member Mendez. All of the sentiments she

expressed, starting, Mr. Chair, with our
appreciation to you and to Chair Katz, our Land

Use chair, and to all of my colleagues on the
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committee for the time and the leadership you are
demonstrating with respect to this very important
project. As Council Member Mendez said, she and |
are working very closely together. There are many
positive aspects of this plan and we appreciate

the work of the Department of City Planning and
HPD, the Department of Housing Preservation and
Development. We look forward to continuing the
process over the next ten days or so to build upon
the positive aspects of this plan to keep them in
place and to add in the enhancements and
alterations needed to bring the best possible plan
that we collectively can come up with to serve the
range of needs of our community. We're all here
to listen from the community and we'll have ample
opportunity to follow-up this hearing with
conversation and with questions on details. We
know we have a lot of speakers. 1 just want to
start off with two basis questions and then | want
to get to the rest of the hearing. Then of course
we'll follow up. On the affordable housing and

the incentivized program to generate additional
affordable housing, we all know and it's the

presumption of this plan that developers will take




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES?27

advantage both of the zoning bonus and the other
housing, especially the 421A affordable housing
benefits, which this council and this

administration have enacted. We all know that
this will be applied on the Lower East Side in the
context of what has historically been a hotter

than average, if you will, real estate market.
Meaning that on the open market this is one of the
areas where developers are able to reap the
highest of rental rates for their units. So in

that context have you done the analysis as to
whether or not the percentage could be increased
from 20% to 25% or to 30%? This has been a
request of the community and of the community
board. We considered this in the hearings on the
421A program where | believe in response to a
guestion by my colleague Council Member Mendez,
Commissioner Donovan or perhaps one of his
representatives testified that certain markets in
this city, including the Lower East Side could in
fact accommodate more than 20% as a requirement to
reap all of these benefits we are giving
developers in a hot real estate market. So why

should we not impose here a 25% or 30% affordable
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housing requirement? If there's any question over
the economics, we could impose a flexibility
clause, if you will. So if experience proves our
belief wrong, the HPD could have the flexibility
to go back to no less than 20%. But why should we
not try in a historical low income where there's
this desperate need, why not 25% or 30% as the
affordable housing requirement?

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: |didn't say
this before and | was hoping | wouldn’t have to
say this, but during the public hearing there will
be no applause and there will be no booing. Your
opportunity to make comment is at the dais. You
sign up to speak. So please bear with us. Don't
do that because at a certain point | will ask the
sergeant-at-arms to ask you to leave. No
applause. No booing. If you have something to
say, sign up to speak. That's your opportunity to
have your input.

EDITH HSU-CHEN: Council Member
Gerson, thank you for your question. The
Inclusionary Housing Program, the ratio of 33%
bonus for 20% provision of affordable housing is a

finely calibrated formula. My colleagues from HPD
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are here to elaborate on the details. But | can
tell you that this incentive must be a strong
incentive in order for it to work. When we
studied the Inclusionary Housing formula, we
looked at all sorts of ratios and this was the
right one that would actually work to make sure
that we could get development and get developers
to take advantage of the Inclusionary Housing
Program. If the incentive is not strong enough,
then no one will take advantage of the program and
we will get no affordable housing units. If
there's anything HPD would like to add?
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: When you
say finely calibrated, do you mean finely
calibrated on a citywide basis, is that not
correct?
EDITH HSU-CHEN: Actually it was
tested in Manhattan. Manhattan was the test area
for the calibration of the 20% and 33%.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: For the
entire borough?
EDITH HSU-CHEN: For the areas in

which the Inclusionary Housing Program might

apply.
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COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Throughout
the borough?

EDITH HSU-CHEN: Including this
neighborhood.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: This same
formula also has been used elsewhere in the city.
Is that not correct?

EDITH HSU-CHEN: That is true.
Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We will
follow up in conversation. It's the feeling of
the representatives of the community that the
situation here is not the same as elsewhere, even
elsewhere in the borough, depending on where
you're talking about, and we should strive for a
greater percentage of affordable housing. | could
leave it at that and follow up because we do want
to get to the hearing.

HOLLY LEICHT: I'm Holly Leicht,
deputy commissioner for development at HPD. |
just wanted to quickly respond to a couple of
comments on this. Where we originally did the
analysis on this started in West Chelsea and

Hudson Yards. West Chelsea market comparables are
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fairly similar to the Lower East Side, actually in
some cases higher. That's when we established
this. We did go back and look at Lower East Side
as well when this rezoning came up to make sure
that it was in line with that. Those were the two
that we originally looked at and did the economic
analysis on the program. One other comment | just
wanted to say is that in 421A hearings | do not
believe that Commissioner Donovan said that the
Lower East Side could take more than 20%. He has
been supportive of this analysis and has been
briefed on this and I think it's unlikely that he
would have taken that position in the 421A
hearings.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: [I'll move
on. | appreciate the clarification. We can
certainly check the record. In any event, there's
no question that we've had significant testimony
by experts who have testified that this area can
sustain a percentage greater than 20%. And if
there's a difference of opinion it seems to me we
should strive for more rather than less, allowing
us flexibility. We will continue these

conversations. My last question on the zoning for
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now is referring to the commercial zones. Could

you just explain to the committee what use group

differentials are proposed? In other words, what

use is currently allowed in the current C6 zoning

that will be disallowed in the proposed C4 zoning?
EDITH HSU-CHEN: The C44A that

we're proposing allows a very wide range of

commercial uses. It was very important that we

support and promote commercial growth in this

area. As you may have heard, there was some push

to have this area rezoned to a residential

district. The city did not believe that was the

right move. We see the Lower East Side as a very

vibrant commercial area that attracts a lot of

visitors, shoppers and tourists and we want to

promote that. The C44A allows, again, a very wide

range of commercial uses and the uses that are

there would be allowed to continue.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: My question

is what does it not allow which is currently

allowed?

EDITH HSU-CHEN: | was about to get

to that. It doesn't allow a very narrow band

that's called use group 11, which is for a certain
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manufacturing of certain clothing and jewelry

materials.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm going

to yield the microphone now. We will need to have
follow-up conversations. We just heard a very
important issue raised that is going to require
further discussion with the administration and
with this committee. So | wanted to get that on
the table. We are going to hear testimony on the
commercial use issue later in this hearing. So |
will yield at this point but I'll come back to
this very, very important issue for the future of
our community in the city. Again, thank you very
much. Thank you both DCP and HPD and | look
forward to continuing our work together.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,
Council Member. | appreciate the fact that you've
limited your questions. We do have somewhere in
the neighborhood of 120 speakers at this point.
Council Member Sears has a question.
COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Sears

stepped away as well.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

Mendez?
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COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you,
Chair Avella. | want to clarify for the record
that Commissioner Shaun Donovan did not make the
remarks about 30%. It was actually a panel of
developers which included REBNY, Phipps Housing
and some small not for profit developers like Mr.
Dunn. | can't remember his first name. But also,
in our community we have done 30% affordable and
more. So I'm sort of interested in hearing how
these studies that were done only support that we
can do 20%.

HOLLY LEICHT: Thank you for the
clarification, Councilwoman. Where we have done
30% and more has been on city owned land where
we've been able to provide below market sales
acquisition prices of $1 which enables us to do a
lot more. Obviously the Inclusionary Program is
on private land, and so when you're talking about
acquisition prices being higher in markets like
the Lower East Side, that then equates to how much
affordability you can do. Clearly on city owned
land we aim do as much as we can for affordable
housing. We would continue to do that on any

public sites that we can find as part of this.
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COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.
I'm just going to ask one more question because
there's so many people here. This is for the
Department of City Planning. My community has
requested and we've certainly seen a lot of
changes on the Bowery where there's a lot of out
of context building. We've been wanting to
include the Bowery and the Fourth Avenue corridor
as part of this rezoning. Can you please explain
why it has not been added to date?

EDITH HSU-CHEN: The question was
posed to us some time during our collaboration
with the community by some in the neighborhood who
asked for rezoning of the Bowery. We looked at
this very carefully. We looked at the Bowery
block by block, lot by lot, and the city's
position, which we still hold, is that the Bowery
is a very wide thoroughfare. It does no have a
consistent character. There are some buildings
that are one-story, two, four, five and some
greater than 15 stories. It is very well served
by transit. Again, as | said earlier, it was a
wide street, at times over 125 feet. There are a

wide variety of uses and the diversity of uses is
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something that we also want to support along the
Bowery. So we did not believe that including the
Bowery in this rezoning was appropriate. The
zoning for the Bowery today is appropriate and
will allow the Bowery continue to flourish as it

is today. Thank you.

COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: There were
other parts of the C61 that were rezoned in this
rezoned area but the Bowery was not. There may be
inconsistent uses, but all we're going to have is
out of scale hotels along the Bowery if we don't
rezone that area. Why were other areas rezoned
that were commercial uses, but not this one?

EDITH HSU-CHEN: The other areas of
the C61 were more definitively associated with the
Lower East Side and the East Village
neighborhoods. The Bowery, again, is a very
distinct corridor in and of itself. People know
the Bowery as the Bowery and that it has a very
wide variety of uses. Everything from housing to
distribution to a new museum that's been
phenomenally successful. So, again, we do not
believe that rezoning the Bowery is appropriate.

COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you,




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES37

Mr. Chair. | have a lot more questions, but it's
a dialogue | could have with the administration
outside of this forum.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: | appreciate
that, Council Member. Thank you. Obviously you
guys are going to stay around.

EDITH HSU-CHEN: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Professional
courtesy I'd like to call on two elected officials
that are here to testify and then we'll start the
public hearing. Assemblyman Brian Kavanagh and
State Senator-elect Daniel Squadron.

BRIAN KAVANAGH: Forgive me; | was
outside the room when | heard my name. My name is
Brian Kavanagh and | represent the 74th Assembly
District. That includes parts of the Lower East
Side, Union Square, Gramercy, Stuyvesant Town,

Peter Cooper Village, Waterside Plaza, Kips Bay,
Murray Hill and Tudor City. Some Tudor City folks
here are very interested. I'd like to thank
Chairperson Tony Avella and the members of the
committee and of course the council members who
are most affected by this and whose communities

this represents, Rosie Mendez and Alan Gerson,
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both of whom have worked very hard and shown great
leadership on this issue. I'd also like to thank

the Department of City Planning and all the
members and staff of Community Board 3 for their
tireless work and all the groups and individuals
who have taken the time to be active in shaping
and reviewing and sometimes criticizing the many
iterations of this plan. I'm sure you'll hear

from many of them today. As you know, the plan
before you today proposes to rezone 111 blocks,
which makes this one of the largest rezoning plans
every considered in the City of New York. |
represent approximately 40 of those blocks, as
well as areas immediately to the north and east.

In many of the neighborhoods that would be
rezoned, the current zoning laws are inadequate to
protect the essential character of the community.
Most of the current zoning laws were drafted in
1961, a time when city planners could not have
envisioned the circumstances and pressures we face
in our communities today. They often allow for

the construction of buildings out of scale with
current usage. The rezoning proposal under

consideration seeks to address this problem by
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establishing contextual building height limits

while extending sliver law protections. The
proposed plan offers important safeguards against
the market pressures that are driving new
development throughout our city and threatening
this community in particular. Unfortunately, one
pernicious consequence of this market pressure
that the plan does not adequately protect against

Is tenant harassment. The increase in allowable
density in parts of the rezoning area may
exacerbate the already serious problem of
harassment of rent regulated and low income
tenants and spur the demolition of sound buildings
as developers seek to maximize the number of
market rate apartments. Community Board 3 and
certainly Council Member Mendez and others have
proposed the inclusion of anti-demolition and
anti-harassment measures within the rezoning plan.
Such provisions have been successfully implemented
in the Clinton Special District, as you know, and

| support their inclusion here. And welcome
Senator-elect Squadron. As you know, the rezoning
plan also proposes to use inclusionary zoning to

encourage developers to build affordable housing.
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It is important that any new housing created by
this plan reflect the diverse range of incomes
among current Lower East Side families. Itis
encouraging that after reviewing feedback to its
original plan, City Planning expanded the areas
where developers could receive the bonus to
include Chrystie Street and all avenues north of
Houston except Avenue B. This is a step in the
right direction but much more needs to be done to
ensure that low and middle income families
continue to be able to afford to live in our
community. | strongly support Community Board 3's
call for 30% of all new housing to be committed as
permanent affordable housing. | also urge the
City Council and City Planning to examine the
definition of affordable used in the plan to

ensure that the housing created will be truly
affordable to New York's working families.

Finally, | would like to note that there are
community groups and individuals with serious
concerns about the boundaries of the proposed
rezoning and its potential effects on neighboring
communities. Although | cannot speak to their

specific issues, which for the most part affect
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areas well outside the district | represent, |
think it's important that their voices continue to
be heard as | know they will be today and where
possible their concerns addressed in the final
plan. There are, however, as we know, many
important issues that have been raised during this
process that will undoubtedly not be addressed in
this rezoning. | look forward to continuing to
work with my colleagues, community groups and
constituents to find solutions to these and many
other issues confronting our community. Thank you
all, again, for the opportunity to offer my
testimony today.

DANIEL SQUADRON: Thank you,
Assembly Member Kavanagh. Thank you to members to
members of the council, to the chair, Council
Member Mendez, Council Member Gerson, both of
whose areas | will share, assuming | make it to
the beginning of January. I'm Daniel Squadron.
I'm the Senator-elect for the 25th Senate
District, which covers the area of the proposed
rezoning. As a senator-elect, | am new to this
process. As a Brooklyn resident, | am relatively

new to this area. But this is an issue that |
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have thought much about, talked much about and is
a critical one for the survival of the district,

of the neighborhood and of the city. It's a

process that started a number of years ago through
really a community based process. It did |

support that. | support the fact that Community
Board 3, David McWater, the chair at the time,
members of the community board, Susan Stetzer, the
district manager, really did drive this process

from the beginning. And that's what we need to
see more of. We need to see more rezonings that
begin at the community, at the community board
level or the community level, and make it as far

as a hearing in this chamber, as a vote in this
chamber, and make it into the force of law. For
that reason, this is a process; this is a rezoning
that | am here to speak in support of. | would

say, however, that while there are advantages to
this rezoning and while | absolutely applaud the
community board and the framers and frankly even
City Planning for pushing it forward with real

height restrictions, with the affordability
requirement on wide streets, this is not a perfect

process and it is not a perfect conclusion. The
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process, as we know, is not perfect, because while
this was originally generated by the community, we
needed City Planning to come and frankly take it
over in many ways in order to push it through.
That's unfortunate and it's a weakness that |

think we see across rezonings, across the city and
one that shouldn’t be the case. Communities
should be able to hold the reins of these all the
way until they get here. That didn't happen here
and | think that is unfortunate. Assembly Member
Kavanagh just referred to this that there are not
harassment provisions included to protect tenants,
| think it's a serious problem and one that needs

to be dealt with. And frankly the issues of
vacancy and luxury de-control for rent stabilized
and rent controlled units is an important one that
will help the harassment issue that | plan to

fight for and deal with on the state level. Anti-
harassment and tenant protections on the city and
the state level are critical whenever you have an
affordable housing component of a process. Twenty
percent is also frankly not sufficient. | know

that the Assembly Member and the council members

also support going to a 30% at least, perhaps even
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more in some context, is a critical improvement

that | would support and | would continue to push
for. And of course, the area that has been so
politically flammable which is what the borders of
this rezoning are is one that we need to deal

with. | have said from the beginning and |

continue to say it today and | ask my colleagues

in government to join me in committing today to
beginning a process for the areas that are left

out of this rezoning. The fact that this is not

perfect does not mean we should throw out the baby
with the bathwater. We must not. But we also
must be sure that the areas that are left out of

this rezoning which will, as the critics have
suggested, experience increased pressure,

partially because of this rezoning and partially
simply because of the way these neighborhoods are
changing, must have a formalized process to
protect the neighborhoods. Whether that's to the
west of the border or to the south of the border,

we must have a formal process for rezoning outside
of this current zoning and | would like to see a
commitment to that as part of the finalization of

this process. But | do believe that the community
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deserves a great deal of applause for having
started this, for having gotten it here today, for
having gotten the turnout that we see today. And
| believe that the council should and | hope they
will support this proposal with the caveats and
the improvements that | talked about. Thank you
very much.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
Gerson has a question.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you
both. Great to see you in City Hall. The
districts that we share and covered by this
rezoning, as you know, contain a significant
amount of presently affordable housing in jeopardy
due to the expiration of the programs. You both
have been outspoken in extending those programs
and preservation. As part of the process as we're
negotiating the maximum amount of affordable units
and in addition, and | want to stress, in addition
to the creation of the new units requested and
demanded by the community, the community board,
Council Member Mendez and myself, would you
support going to the administration, other

available resources in some cases, such as the
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Lower Manhattan Development Corporation to put in
place a preservation plan to assure that the
existing affordable units remain affordable so
that as we create new we don't suffer a net loss
at the same time.

BRIAN KAVANAGH: When you talk
about preservation, of course, it's loaded and
necessary in its entire context in this area. But
certainly the preservation of the affordable units
we have is critical. | would go farther and say
that a real enforcement mechanism on the 20% or
the 30% on the new housing is critical too. But
part of that's the state's responsibility frankly
on vacancy and luxury de-control. But having a
comprehensive sense and knowledge of the fact that
we're improving the situation, we're not either
staying neutral or losing ground | think is
absolutely a critical part of this.

DANIEL SQUADRON: [I'll just answer
with yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you
both and thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

gentleman. Now we will begin the regular public
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hearing. I'm going to be calling panels in favor
and opposition. Each speaker will have two
minutes and that does include a translation. | do
not normally cut people off if they go over. |
ask people to be considerate of their fellow New
Yorkers that are here to testify. Remember that
we have over 120 people to speak. We want to make
sure that everybody gets an opportunity to have
their say. Council Member Gerson has asked me to
remind everybody, if you want to speak, you must
fill out one of these slips. Go to the sergeant-
at-arms desk at my left. | think we're ready.
I'm calling people in the order that they came
into the room. So the people that were here first
are going to be able to speak first. Andrew
Berman, Jordan Miller, Aaron Sosnick and Georgina
Christ. So far | only see one person up and |
know who that is. Jordan Miller, is he here?
Aaron Sosnick? Georgina Christ? Oh, she left.
Her testimony will be submitted into the record.
Phyllis Banek, B-A-N-E-K? Phyllis? We'll call
him in the next panel.

ANDREW BERMAN: Good morning,

Council Members. My name is Andrew Berman. I'm
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the executive director of the Greenwich Village
Society for Historic Preservation. GVSHP is the
largest membership organization in Greenwich
Village, the East Village and NoHo. I'm here this
morning to say that the East Village desperately
needs a rezoning. The current R72 and C61 zoning
allows up to 6.5 FAR for community facilities such
as dormitories with no height limits or limits on

heir rights transfers, thus allowing buildings of

even greater bulk and size. Two such out of scale
developments are the 16th story tower above the
Theater for the New City and the 13 story New York
Law School dorm, the figures of which are attached
in my testimony. As development parcels are being
collected in the neighborhood and as large

potential development sites, such as the Mary Help
of Christians Church become available, more and
larger such towers will become commonplace in the
neighborhood. Additionally, Second Avenue below
Seventh Street allows commercial development such
as hotels up to 6 FAR, which is completely
inappropriate. The proposed rezoning will address
many of these concerns. There will be height caps

for the first time ever throughout the East
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Village which will not allow buildings to exceed

six to eight stories in most areas. The zoning
bonus for dorms and hotels will be eliminated and
in most cases the maximum allowable FAR will be
reduced. The environmental impact statement
includes a survey of historic resources in the
neighborhood which identifies a broad range of
potential landmarks and historic districts. These
are all necessary and important steps in the right
direction and we do not believe that they can move
forward a moment too soon. We do however believe
that there could be further improvements. The
plan only reduces the allowable FAR on side
streets to 3 FAR on three blocks. We believe that
many more side streets warrant this lower FAR. We
are concerned about the potential loss of smaller
two, three and four and even five story buildings
on some major avenues. While we're grateful that
the current commercially zoned district on Second
Avenue has been cut back from Seventh Street to
Third Street and given contextual height caps, we
believe that the higher density commercial

district should be eliminated entirely from lower

Second Avenue. Finally, we believe that the




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES50

allowable height of buildings on Avenue D and
Houston are too great and that a lower
intermediate contextual height, such as proposed
by Community Board 3, would be preferable. All
such revisions were included in Community Board
3's eleven-point plan in response to the rezoning
which GVSHP strongly supports. Finally, | would
be remiss not to mention our deep disappointment
that the rezoning does not include the Bowery and
Third and Fourth Avenue corridors. These streets
and their side streets were excluded from the
rezoning and are being decimated by a wholly
inappropriate scale of new development. GVSHP and
a variety of elected officials and community
groups have been working with Board 3 to craft a
reasonable proposal for rezoning this area which
would still allow development while preserving its
scale and character.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Andrew, can
you sum up?

ANDREW BERMAN: | strongly urge
that the City Council do everything in its power
to pressure City Planning to agree to include this

area. Thank you.
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AARON SOSNICK: Good morning, Chair
Avella, other council members. Thank you for this
opportunity to testify before your subcommittee.
My name is Aaron Sosnick. I'm a founder of the
East Village Community Coalition, a member of the
Community Board 3 task force on rezoning and a
member of LESCAZ, the Lower East Side Coalition
for Accountable Zoning. | wish to express my
strong support for the East Village Lower East
Side rezoning along with changes in city
commitments sought by LESCAZ, Community Board 3,
Council Member Mendez and other local elected
officials. This rezoning provides many important
protections for my community and cannot be enacted
soon enough. | wish to thank all the members of
LESCAZ, CB3, Council Member Mendez, Borough
President Stringer, other elected officials, the
Department of City Planning and all of those who
have worked so hard in support of this rezoning.
It is important to emphasize that while | support
rezoning other inappropriately zoned city blocks
and neighborhoods, there is no reason to wait on
this rezoning. It should be passed immediately

with all areas included. The zoning district
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certified by City Planning must be adopted. The
areas both above and below Houston Street are
threatened. The Lower East Side was recently
listed as one of the 11 most endangered places by
the National Trust for Historic Preservation.
This rezoning can immediately protect many of
these blocks. | note that approval of the full
rezoning area with these zoning districts was
unanimously voted for by Community Board 3.
Please work to provide the additional anti-
harassment and affordable housing measures that
are so important to our community. Thank you.
JORDAN MILLER: Hello, my name is
Jordan Miller. I'm here as a resident of the
Lower East Side who has seen the neighborhood
change materially over the last six years that
I've been there. I've seen a lot of tenement
buildings torn down and people displaced. And not
just people but local small businesses that |
think are very important to the fabric of the
neighborhood. As imperfect as this plan may be, |
think right now it's the only solution to
preserving the character of the neighborhood. The

character both in terms of the character of the
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people who live there, the demographics of the

people who live there and the architectural urban

character of the city. It's a very simple

thought, but | just wanted to say it. Thank you.
PHYLLIS BANEK: Hi. Thanks for

having us. My name is Phyllis Banek. I'm a

member of the Bowery Alliance of Neighbors. I'm

70-years-old. Presently I live at 200 East Fifth

Street, which is the JASA Cooper Square Residence

for Seniors and Disabled. The one and only

entrance to my building faces the side entrance

and exit door of the Cooper Square Hotel. This

22-story luxury hotel has its main entrance on the

Third Avenue corridor. The hotel plans to have a

supper club and two interior bars. Also they

intend to install two outdoor drinking and dining

areas. Our block association fought for two years

with the owner of this hotel in order to limit use

of the side door as well as modify the use of the

outdoor areas. On January 8th, 2008, we presented

our final request to the SLA to grant the

stipulations in the above mentioned statement.

The Cooper Square Hotel will be opening shortly.

They've opened partially for events and we've
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already had traffic jams. The owner of the
hotel's reply was that he thought they could
control it. This was our main object. Before |
came to 200 East Fifth Street, | lived a few
buildings down the block wit my daughter for 30
years. | lived on the third floor and was always
awakened by revelers around 4 in the morning,
honking horns, screaming, et cetera, and
accompanying this mayhem was the continual
presence of smoke invading my space, even with the
windows closed. Now I live on the upper floor and
the situation is the same, perhaps even worse, as
a result of the rapid growth of bars in the
community. Many people in my residence need
access to ambulances, ambulates, meals on wheels
and other emergency services. |, along with my
fellow residents, must have this access 24/7. The
Cooper Square Hotel will not only have to
accommodate its guests, but also its many bars and
restaurant patrons, creating excessive congestion
with cars, taxis, car services, and limousines.
My building already has--

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: [interposing]

Ma'am, can you sort of sum up?
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PHYLLIS BANEK: Okay. The Bowery
and Third Avenue corridor is most often used as an
emergency route for the entire neighborhood.

Massive structures, such as the Cooper Square
Hotel, are already destroying the cultural
diversity, quality of life, et cetera, and

infringing on the needs of the community. |
implore you to add the east side of the Bowery to
the rezoning plan. The zoning on the east side of
the Bowery should reflect that of the west side.

If these measures are taken now, perhaps the
historical and architectural integrity of this
community will survive. My concern is for all
citizens. Please don't steal the visual history
from my grandchildren and their peers.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You managed to
getitallin.

PHYLLIS BANEK: I'm sorry. |
thought it was three minutes.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's all
right. Given the fact that we have so many
people, | think it's just important that everybody
be as brief as possible.

PHYLLIS BANEK: I'm sorry.
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CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: | appreciate
the two speakers who were under the two minutes.
Council Member Gerson has a question.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Miller,
you were the only one who brought up the issue of
tenements and the loss of tenements and tenement
housing, so I'm going to direct this to you. |
just want to clarify your remarks. We've had in
place a pilot program that upgrades conditions
within, but preserving the essential structure of
the tenement housing. As part of our visioning
and planning for the future, is that something
that you feel we should pursue and build upon?

JORDAN MILLER: I think tenement
housing can mean a lot of things. | meant
relatively low rise, you know five-story or six-
story, with commercial on the bottom and that
facade.

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Precisely.

JORDAN MILLER: In my experience,
if you look at Batter Park and the big buildings
there with the kind of big retail spaces below, it
kills the street life and that's not the case in

the Lower East Side. So | feel like the structure
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of the neighborhood gives to the life of the
neighborhood and that's what | meant.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And |
agree. Thank you very much.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
The first panel in opposition. Christabel? Wah
Lee? Lindsay, is it Schubiner, S-C-H-U-B-I-N-E-R?
She left. I'm sorry. You can submit her
statement for the record. But if you read her
statement then you cannot sign up to speak as
well. We need to know your name. Malcolm Lam?
CHRISTABEL GOUGH: Good morning.
I'm Christabel Gough from the Society for the
Architecture of the City. We are here just to
address the historic preservation aspects of this
plan, which is why I'm registered in opposition.
Although this rezoning has been hyped as an action
preserving neighborhood character, it does provide
a great deal of latitude, both for new
construction and for expansion of existing
buildings, even though it limits tower
construction and provides some protections for
street walls. The major planning error is the

decision to omit the Bowery from the rezoning
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area. The Bowery is one of our oldest
thoroughfares. It appears on the Manatus Maps of
1639, but it dates back to prehistory as a Native
American trail, running crooked against the
Manhattan street grid. Even today, much of the
Bowery retains a special 19th Century character
and scale. The Lower East Side grew up around it
over the centuries. To map contextual zoning
adjacent to the Bowery while leaving the Bowery
corridor itself subject to the old outdated

standard C61 mapping clearly invites new buildings
to break the street wall and skyline with a tower

on a base construction of the maximum possible
height. Examples of such intrusions into the
neighborhood have already outraged New Yorkers
from the area. The intrusions have also
astonished many who use the Williamsburg Bridge
and can hardly believe the inappropriate new
buildings they are seeing. We thank the
Department of City Planning Environmental Review
Division for the full discussion of historic
preservation issues in the EIS. A chilling, 95-
page account of the numerous historic properties

in the rezoning area and the negative impacts this
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rezoning will have on them. Of special concern

are the 61 buildings found eligible for local or

state protection, but not yet landmarked or

listed. They are in the path of destruction

because of the latitude for new construction and

expansion mentioned above. Administration policy

was perhaps reflected in the original EIS draft

scope, which omitted the Bowery from consideration

in clear violation of CEQR rules. We believe the

council should require follow-up corrective action

on the Bowery corridor zoning. Segregating the

Bowery from the rest of the Lower East Side makes

no sense historically or urbanistically. It is

not neighborhood preservation; it is a formula for

tearing a neighborhood away from its roots.
LINDSAY SCHUBINER: My name is

Lindsay Schubiner and I'm a volunteer with Chinese

Staff and Workers Association, part of the

Coalition to Preserve Chinatown and the Lower East

Side. | oppose this rezoning because it is racist

and it will displace the low income communities of

color living in Chinatown and the Lower East Side.

It implements upzoning on Delancey, Avenue D and

Chrystie, all avenues with more low income people
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and more people of color living on them than other
avenues in the neighborhood. It creates height
caps for only the East Village, the area of the
community district with the greater concentration
of white people and wealthy people. It excludes
Chinatown and the Lower East Side, which means
that development from the upzoned avenues will be
pushed into these neighborhoods since they don't
have any height caps. It threatens to divide the
community by creating separate plans rather than
uniting the community under one plan that protects
all current residents from displacement. Although
| did not grow up in this neighborhood, I've spent
a lot of time here and | care about it deeply. |
don't want this city's government and wealthy
developers to displace communities and small
businesses that have made it what it is today.

But this racist rezoning also has implications
beyond this neighborhood. It demonstrates a
corruption of the democratic process, of the right
of the people to determine what happens in their
own community. This is something that affects all
of us no matter where we are from. This plan was

created without the participation of most of the
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CB3 community and specifically excluded people of
color from the planning process. There has been
no real outreach to Chinese and Latino
communities. Over the past several months we have
collected over 11,000 signatures in support of our
petition opposing this racist plan. And almost no
one we spoke with had any prior knowledge of the
plan. In addition, as a rule there has been no
translation into Chinese or Spanish during this
entire rezoning process. This lack of translation
even at a City Council hearing today is just one
more example of the clear intent to exclude
community participation. I'm a recent graduate of
Barnard College and | saw firsthand how Columbia
weaseled its harmful expansion plan through the
city rezoning process, even despite the prolonged
organized resistance of local residents in West
Harlem who did not want to be pushed out of their
homes and their neighborhood. It became clear to
me that the rezoning process in New York City is
flawed from the top down.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Hold your
testimony for a second. I'm very serious about

this. No applause. No booing. When you do that
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you interfere with the rights of everybody else in
this room. This is a public hearing to give you
the opportunity to speak. There's your
opportunity. And every time you do this | will
stop the meeting. It will just slow up the
process and at some point you will be asked to
leave. Because if | allow the applause, then |
have to allow the booing. Neither one is
appropriate. So | ask you to do the right thing
and respect your neighbors. Because when you
applaud or you boo, you're actually intimidating
other speakers or other people in this room.
Please do not do this. This is your opportunity
to speak, but that's where you speak.

LINDSAY SCHUBINER: Can I finish
the entire statement? Thanks. It became clear to
me that the rezoning process in New York City is
flawed from the top down and this East Village
rezoning is just one more example of that. But
some local community organizations also
participate in and support his undemocratic
process by compromising. They think that they
can't get what they really need for the community,

so they need to accept any crumbs the city will
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throw their way, such as height limits, even
though this plan is primarily in upzoning, or such
as promises of so-called affordable housing to be
created by Inclusionary zoning. Housing which
developers may choose not to provide and which
will likely be unaffordable to the majority of
current residents. | am happy to speak here in
support of the Coalition to Preserve Chinatown and
the Lower East Side because we have refused to
accept anything less than the protection of this
entire community. | urge you to stop this racist
rezoning plan and support the creation of a new
plan that offers protection from displacement to
all of Community District 3. Thank you.

WAH LEE: [Foreign language].

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ma'am, | have
to ask you to sum up.

WAH LEE: | know. Yeah, very
quick. [Foreign language].

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir?

MALCOLM LAM: Thank you, ladies and
gentleman. My name is Malcolm Lam. I'm part of
the Coalition to Protect Chinatown and the Lower

East Side. It appears the MO of Bloomberg and
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that of other city officials is to ignore the

voice of New York City residents, whether it be on
the issue of term limits or the passing of

destructive rezoning and development plans across
this city. Although these officials are to

represent the people, they continue to further

their own personal agenda. Whether it be the
appeasement of special interest groups maneuvering
for political gain or the need to stroke one's

ego. The plan to rezone the Lower East Side is a
bad plan from its inception. The borders of the

plan promotes and encourages segregation that has
continued to plague this city for generations.
Instead of viewing district 3 in its entirety, it
segregates neighborhoods into three parts, putting
whites, Hispanics and Chinese against one another.
Support for the plan gains its strength by

dividing people through misinformation and lies.

It is a wholesale sellout of one community for
another. Now there are talks to create a separate
Chinatown plan. It's amusing to me that a

separate plan for Chinatown is being viewed as an
acceptable alternative and solution in quieting

public unrest. But | do recall the U.S. Supreme
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Court decision of Brown versus Board stating, and
| paraphrase, that separate was not equal. DCP
claims there are no racial motivations in the
drafting of this plan, yet the DEIS fails to

examine the ramifications rezoning will have on
people of color, or that of lower income. The
issue of race is never explored and so DCP's
claims are either fabricated or based on
conjecture. There are clear relationships between
low income, race and family size within District

3. The plan will have a definite influence on

these demographic shifts in the future. DCP talks
about affordable housing, but doesn’t guarantee
any will be created. And should it be created,

the affordable housing would not be affordable for
most of the low income residents in CD3. The word
affordable is ambiguous and misleading. DCP
praises Inclusionary zoning, but it fails to

inform the public on the city's failure to create
many affordable units since its introduction.
Studies have shown that in order for IZ to be
effective, current affordable housing needs to be
preserved as well as new units must be mandatory.

The plan fails on both points. | will finish up
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here. | can't say enough on how bad this plan is,
yet city officials continue to push it on to the
populous like a snake oil salesman trying to push
their poison. They claim the plan will preserve
neighborhoods and protect its people, but the fact
is, it is more likely to displace people of color
and those of low income. It will make the rich
richer and the poor poorer. It promotes
development under the guise of humanitarianism, an
illusion to blind the people. | implore you to
see the plan for what it is, poison. Please vote
it down. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
Mendez has a question.
COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: To either
one of the two from the Coalition to Save
Chinatown and the Lower East Side. Your testimony
your said you wanted the entire Community Board 3
rezoned. Is that correct?
MALCOLM LAM: | want the entire
Community Board 3 looked at a whole. And so when
you're rezoning that you look at it as a whole.
COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay, | got

my answer.
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LINDSAY SCHUBINER: | want to
clarify also there's three members. Just because
you weren't able to understand her, she's a part
of the coalition as well.
COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: That's it.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
Council Member Gerson has a question.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Actually
just a brief statement and then a question. Just
for the audience and I'll ask Ms. To [phonetic] to
translate. Council Member Mendez and I, and I'm
quite confident our Chair, all agree that we need
to upgrade the City Council to allow for
electronic translation and that is something we
have called for and will continue to try to
implement as soon as possible. In the interim |
want to make it clear, if anyone here wishes to
testify in any language and then have that
translated, that is your right to do so within
roughly the time allotted. If you require
translation assistance and you don't have one with
you, our Chief of Staff, Ms. Tough [phonetic] is
here and will work to provide the translation

assistance. So I'm going to ask Ms. Tough to
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repeat what | just said.
MS. TOUGH: [Foreign language].
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Councll
Member Mendez?
COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I'm
available for Spanish translation. [Foreign
language].
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: | will ask
Ms. Tough to repeat my question. | understand
your broad point and we have both put on the
immediate need for a planning process to cover the
excluded areas in the vicinity of this rezoned
area. But my question to you is, what is your
greatest concern over a detrimental impact that
might be felt in the area outside of the rezoned
district? | mean in addition to the broad need
for planning, which | understand and we hear you
and with which | concur, can you identify any
specific concern which you think we need to guard
against if this rezoning were to go through in
terms of any ripple effect, unintended consequence
in the area just outside of the border.
MS. TOUGH: [Foreign language].

MALCOLM LAM: 1 think the issue is




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES69

that the way the plan is currently designed, it
increases property value on the outskirts. | mean
just by the upzoning of Avenue D as well as
Delancey. Real estate owners on Bowery are
already expecting their property rates to go up as
soon as this plan passes. So it's no illusion.

Real estate people know that if you're outside,

the value of your property is going to go up. So
the pressure is going to be automatically applied.
Now we talk about the East Village being in need
of over development, but Chinatown has the same
need. The only problem is that with this plan it
actually heightens the development and increases.
So it's basically just pushing the pressures away
from this area into the outskirts. And then

there's a lot of things even with NYCHA. The DCP
doesn’t talk about NYCHA because it says it can't
be touched. But we all know that there's already
talks about selling out air spaces and privatizing
and possible warehousing. So that's something
that DCP and the DEIS don't even cover. Inregard
to translation, | think that people want a
professional translator from the mere fact that

40% of people living in DC3 are not proficient in
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English. So that's no small minority that do not
speak English. They either speak Spanish
primarily or Chinese. So | think that's why there
are a lot of people who are disappointed that
there's no professional translation. No offense
to the people up there.

WAH LEE: [Foreign language].

COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you
very much.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
The next panel is a panel in favor. Dominic
Pisciotta, the chair of the Community Board 3,

Lucille Carrasquero, Joyce Ravitz, and Gene
Standish.

DOMINIC PISCIOTTA: Hello, my name
is Dominic Pisciotta. I'm the chair of Manhattan
Community Board 3. I'm going to give basically a
cliff note version of the testimony that I'm going
to submit to try to stay under the two minutes.

Before | begin, | would like to take this

opportunity to thank the Department of City
Planning, my predecessor David McWater and our
district council members for all the hard work

they and the their representatives have done on
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this zoning proposal to get it to this stage of

the ULURP process and for listening to and working
with the community since we asked for rezoning in
July of 2005. CB3 followed a democratic community
planning process over several years in concert

with our council members, community members,
leaders and organizations. Any last minute
demands or tangential proposals, as well as
attempts to derail the ULURP at this late hour

does not respect the work of the community. | ask
that the City Council only consider adding items
that have been agreed to as a result of previous
public hearings and the conditions of the ULURP
unanimously approved by Community Board 3 and
carefully weigh those that could potentially

enhance this zoning plan. Dismantling the

rezoning at this point would be devastating to a
community that has been at the center of the real
estate development boom that exploded over the
last decade. As this occurred it became apparent
to even the most casual observer that a zoning
change is one of the few ways of saving a life,
saving a community in CB3. When CB3 convened its

197 Task Force in July of 2005, it set about
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working to solve the problems of multiplying high
rises, displacement of households and the
destruction of mom and pop businesses. We decided
to work with the city on a rezoning instead of

going it alone and we decided two other things.
That we would include as many major community
stakeholders as possible on the committee. Many
of those groups will give testimony here today and
I'm proud to say that this blue panel group, along
with 10 Community Board 3 members, managed to vote
unanimously on every single proposal they had over
a two-year period. We selected guiding principles
that all stakeholders determined as having common
ground. Over the next year our task force worked
diligently, meeting with DCP, reading studies,
listening to and hiring experts to help us. |

echo the previous panels request for including

other items that weren't or aren't in the zoning

as part of our original 11 points, as Community
Board 3 had requested. We'd also like to see 700
affordable units for families at 80% of median
income or below. We also want to thank DCP and
the State of New York for working so diligently

with us on this, especially the great speed with
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which the zoning proposal has been developed. As
we are literally inundated with new and out of
context luxury development every day, speed is
perhaps our greatest ally.

LUCILLE CARRASQUERO: Good morning.
My name is Lucille Carrasquero and I'm the
chairperson of the Cooper Square Committee. We
are a membership organization with over 600
members, the vast majority of whom are low income
families and households. Our organization is also
a member of the Lower East Side Coalition for
Accountable Zoning, LESCAZ. We urge the City
Council to support this ULURP to rezone 111 blocks
on the Lower East Side. Our current zoning does
not provide adequate protections against out of
scale development in hundreds of locations around
our neighborhood. According to the Department of
Buildings Records, in just the past nine months
there have been 14 new buildings that received new
permits or renewals of permits. Of these 14
buildings, 8 of them are way more than 80 feet in
height. In other words, nearly 60% of the
buildings under construction in the proposed

rezoning area are out of scale with the existing
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character of our community. Also, several new
hotels that are going up south of Houston Street,
such as the 11-story hotel at 136 Ludlow Street,
the 18-story hotel at 180 Ludlow Street and the
10-story hotel at 163 Orchard Street. Also, the
new luxury residential buildings such as a 26-
story building at 180 Orchard Street and a 23-
story building at 188 Ludlow Street. We strongly
support inclusionary zoning which will provide
incentives for private owners to develop
affordable housing along the wide avenues on the
Lower East Side. In adopting inclusionary zoning,
DCP must also create language in the zoning text
that prohibits demolition of structurally sound
buildings and provides stronger anti-harassment
protections for tenants. Again, | want to urge
that the City Council vote in favor of this ULURP
which will benefit more than 100,000 residents in
the area that will be rezoned. Sixty percent of
these residents are people of color. Their median
income is just over $33,000 per year. They are
facing displacement pressures under the current

zoning. Thank you for listening.

JOYCE RAVITZ: Good morning.

My
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name is Joyce Ravitz. | live on the Lower East
Side on Grand Street. My grandparents immigrated
here and they lived on the Lower East Side. My
parents lived on the Lower East Side. My children
can't afford to live here. I'm one of the CB3
members who voted for this rezoning plan because |
love the Lower East Side and it pains me to see

the current wave of large hotels drowning the
diverse community that I love. I'm the co-vice
chairperson of the Cooper Square Committee. Our
organization has worked to sponsor this
preservation and development of over 600 units of
low income housing during the past 25 years. We,
like other low income housing preservation
organizations, are finding few opportunities to
develop new low and moderate income housing on the
Lower East Side. As you know, relatively few city
owned sites remain. The privately owned housing
stock has become prohibitive, expensive and
thousands of affordable rent stabilized apartments
have been deregulated in the past decade, leaving
our community with less and less affordable
housing. In this environment, government must use

every tool at its disposal to promote the
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preservation and development of affordable
housing. Zoning is one such tool. | urge you to
vote in favor of the ULURP application for this
rezoning plan developed in the partnership between
the Department of City Planning and CB3. Not just
because it will apply the much needed height

limits, but because it will apply inclusionary

zoning to the wide avenues in our community from
Second Avenue to Avenue D north of Houston Street,
as well as Houston, Delancey and Chrystie Streets.
DCP projects that nearly 500 low income housing
units will be developed in these inclusionary

zones over the next decade because of the zoning
bonuses they will provide to developers who build
mixed income housing. Without inclusionary zoning
there will be few opportunities to create low

income housing in our community in the coming
years. | also want to urge the City Council to

help our economically diverse community to develop
more affordable housing than just the 500 low
income units in the inclusionary zones by
identifying city owned sites, not Seward park,
where at least 700 additional units of low,

moderate and middle income housing can be
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developed.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can you sum

up?

JOYCE RAVITZ: Yes. In addition, |

urge you to adopt a stronger anti-demolition plan
and anti-harassment provisions as part of the
rezoning plan. We need concrete protections and
they must be enforced. If a property owner is
found to have engaged in harassment, they must be
required to set aside 28% of FAR for permanent
affordable housing in the building where the
harassment finding was made. They must also be
ineligible for government subsidies, including

421A to any new construction on any sites they
own. Finally, | want to urge the City Council to
continue to work with the Bowery and the Third and
Fourth Avenue corridors within the next couple of
years. We need the resources to conduct an
environmental impact statement in these areas
which are not included in the current plan. With
regard to Chinatown, I'm happy to support and in
good faith to rezone Chinatown if that's what the
Chinese communities wants and we urge the city to

provide the necessary planning resources to
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facilitate such a process. Thank you.

JEAN STANDISH: My name is Jean

Standish and I'm a member of the Bowery Alliance
of Neighbors. One of the major problems with the
rezoning of the East Village and Lower East Side
is the Department of City Planning's exclusion of
the Third Avenue Bowery corridor from the plan.
According to City Planning the rezoning does not
include the Bowery because its existing built
character is not consistent with the low to medium
density form of the majority of the East Village
and Lower East Side and that this corridor is a
wider avenue that is well served by mass transit.
This rationale, however, is not accurate. The
Bowery is a low rise community with buildings
averaging four to ten stories in height, excluding
of course the recently constructed high rise

hotels and luxury buildings. Concerning the width
of the avenue, Delancey and Houston Streets are
equally as wide as the Bowery and they are also
served by mass transit. Debunking the argument
that this district is markedly different from the
rezoned area. In fact, the Bowery is an extension

of the build character of the Lower East Side.
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Because the Bowery is a commercial district it is
rapidly evolving into a massive wall of towers.

As a consequence of this rampant out of scale
development this district is losing its diversity

and distinct low rise historic character, giving

way to gentrification and secondary displacement.
Excluding the Bowery from the rezoning plan will
also negatively impact the East Village and Lower
East Side regardless of the proposed contextual
zoning with a wall of out of scale luxury
development on the periphery of these communities.
The city has recognized the historic significance
of the Bowery by protecting the west side of the
Bowery in the Little Italy Special District and

the NoHo Historic District. The East
Village/Lower East Side rezoning will protect the
area just east of the Bowery. However, the east
side of the Bowery itself has been left out of
these rezonings. The east side of the Bowery
should be rezoned to ensure that it is in context
with the rest of the community, the Little Italy
Special District, the NoHo Historic District and
the East Village/Lower East Side rezoning plan.

We respectfully request that a further immediate
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study be done of the Bowery and protection be
implemented to preserve this district. Possibly a
follow-up corrective action could be drafted by
City Council requesting the City Planning
Commission initiate an immediate rezoning of this
area or an extension of the Little Italy Special
District from the west side of the Bowery to the
east side of the Bowery. The Bowery is an
important part of the history of New York City.
But without immediate protection much of it will
be obliterated.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
You mentioned about a follow-up corrective action.
| think it's important for everybody to know that
a follow-up corrective action only happens when we
have an agreement with City Planning to do it.
City Council can make a recommendation but without
a commitment it's just a recommendation. So a
follow-up corrective action usually means that
we've actually gotten a commitment that they will
do it as part of our recommendation.

JEAN STANDISH: These are just
suggestions.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Right. I just
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want to let you know.
JEAN STANDISH: Exactly. And these
are just suggestions because it's only this chunk,
it's just the east side of the Bowery. | mean
we're not asking for the entire lower of
Manhattan. And to lose the oldest avenue in New
York to this decimation of massive hotels is
criminal. It is criminal what is happening to our
community.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We got you.
We understand. The next panel. I'm sorry.
Council Member Mendez.
COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you,
Chair Avella. We're really trying to minimize our
guestions so that everyone can testify. This is
for the chair of CB3, Dominic Pisciotta. Can you
tell us the boundaries of Community Board 3 and
can you tell us approximately how many blocks are
in CB3?
DOMINIC PISCIOTTA: The border is
the Bowery on the east. The northern part is 14th
Street. Anything under that all the way to the
Brooklyn Bridge. And then it includes a segment

of Chinatown up to the Bowery. | don't know the
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answer to how many blocks. | just know that the
rezoning is 111 block.

COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
The next panel is a panel in favor. Chris from
AAFE. | know he's here. Chris Kui, Steve
Herrick, B. Eileen Grigg and Thomas Yu. |
apologize. | just goofed. I just did two panels
in favor. To compensate, I'll do two panels in
opposition next.

CHRISTOPHER KUI: Hello,
Councilman. My name is Christopher Kui. I'm the
executive director of Asian Americans for
Equality. AAFE supports the overwhelming majority
of affordable housing advocates and organizations
in the Lower East Side that the East Village/Lower
East Side rezoning proposal is a major step in
stemming the rampant gentrification and out of
context luxury development in our mixed income
neighborhood. The rezoning process was conducted
in a fair and open manner and was developed
through a democratic process, substantiated by
over three years of numerous town hall meetings

and other public hearings and meetings. AAFE
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supports the Lower East Side rezoning plan with a
caveat that the city and the Planning Commission
immediately undertake a dedicated Chinatown
rezoning study to see how we can all craft a plan
that is likewise best for Chinatown. There is no
doubt from our work in the community that
Chinatown is in trouble. The loss of
manufacturing jobs, the loss of affordable

housing, aging and dilapidated housing stocks,
lack of green space and overloaded transportation
infrastructure. The city must pledge to provide
much needed funds and reinvestment into one of the
country's oldest immigrant communities to ensure
that we tackle these problems. Time is of the
essence. We all understand that no rezoning plan
is perfect, but we support identifying areas

within the current rezoning plan that could be
modified. We're proposing the following: to
ensure that the inclusionary zoning mandate at
least 30% affordable housing; increase tenant
rights advocacy and education; implementation of a
stronger anti-eviction, anti-landlord harassment
provision; to exclude Chrystie Street portion

south of Delancey Street from the current rezoning
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to be considered at a future rezoning process; and
then lastly to conduce further investigation to
quickly determine the propose C4-4A zoning area
which excluded User Groups 7 and 11 be replaced
with potentially C6-1A or C6-2A to preserve
important local businesses. | know my time is up.
| think it's really important that we work

together. | know in recent months there has been
a lot of criticism and accusation of racism by
opponents of the plan. But these accusations |
think oversimplifies and | think basically throw a
smokescreen over the real is of neighborhood
preservation. The loosely substantiated claim of
racism amount we believe dangerous race baiting
and remain an impediment to the common goals of
affordable housing preservation for our low income
residents in Chinatown and Lower East Side. I'm
going to conclude that we cannot afford to be
divided. The longer we dwell on this type of
polarization the longer consensus is thwarted and
the longer we'll all remain vulnerable to the
onslaught of gentrification. Stopping the Lower
East Side rezoning plan only hands the

unscrupulous developers a green light to continue
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their dislocation of low income residents.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Chris?
CHRISTOPHER KUI: So thank you.
STEVE HERRICK: Good morning,

council members. I'm Steve Herrick, executive

director of Cooper Square Committee. We're a

membership organization with over 600 low and

moderate income members. Our organization is also

member of LESCAZ, coalition of affordable housing

and preservation groups. We strongly support the

contextual rezoning of 111 blocks as proposed in

this ULURP action. This plan is the result of a

collaborative partnership between Community Board

3 and the Department of City Planning. Dozens of

public meetings were held over the last three

years to arrive at this plan. The area contains

over 100,000 residents, 60% of whom are people of

color. The median income of the census tracts

included in this plan is about $33,000, which is

less than 60% of the city's median income. This

plan contains many positive elements such as: 80-

foot height limits on most of the avenues north

and south of Houston Street, which will limit new

buildings to seven to eight stories with setbacks
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at 40 to 65 feet; 75-foot height limits on mid

blocks north of Houston Street; reduced commercial
and community FAR south of Houston Street that
will reduce incentives for hotels and dorms,

thereby preserving the residential character of

our community; inclusionary zoning to promote low
income housing on Delancey Street, Houston Street,
Avenue D and Chrystie Street with height limits of
120 feet; inclusionary zoning on the avenues from
Second Avenue to Avenue C. Together these
inclusionary zones will create incentives through
FAR bonuses that will result in an estimated 500
new low income housing units over the next decade.
While these are important gains for our community,
we're losing hundreds of rent regulated units

every year due to displacement and gentrification
under our current zoning. We need the City

Council to put forth a follow-up corrective action
plan to this rezoning that will address the urgent
need for at least 700 new low income housing units
in the rezoning area outside the 1Zs. There are a
number of city owned sites that can and should be
developed as low and moderate income housing. We

urge the city to make this happen. The other
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critical issue we need to address is the potential
increase in harassment that may occur in the
inclusionary zones. We all recognize harassment
is already a huge issue in our community under our
current zoning. However, in the 1Zs, the increase
on as of right FAR may create incentives for
developers to harass out tenants. For this reason
we want anti-harassment provisions to be applied
in the IZs. Finally, | want to urge that the city
continue to work with our community to rezone the
Bowery and the Third and Fourth Avenue corridors
as soon as possible. Our community will be
getting more affordable housing and strict
building height limits as a result of this
rezoning, which is desperately needed. | urge the
City Council to vote in support of this plan.
Thank you.

B. EILEEN GRIGG: Hi. My name is
Eileen Grigg. I've been a resident of this
community for over 35 years. | want to thank the
members of the committee and express my
appreciation and concern for the extremely
important job that you do, not only for our

neighborhood, but for neighborhoods all over the
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city in preserving the quality. Zoning is vital

to preserving the quality and livability of New

York City for all of its citizens. Anyone who has
lived in New York City for any period of time
knows that it's not one big city, it's a huge
succession of neighborhoods all kind of jammed
together. I'm sure that each of you are on the
council because you wanted to represent you
specific neighborhood or community because you
liked it and you wanted to put roots down there
and there were special qualities that your
particular neighborhood had. After coming here as
a young person, that's why | decided to stay in

the East Village. | know that the neighborhood
has gone through changes, some of the good, and
some of them I'm not so pleased about. Every
neighborhood needs to change, but the change on
the Lower East Side has been just astonishing in
the past few years. | think there are a lot of
important reasons why including low to moderate
income housing and making it important and a
condition in terms of rezoning is something that's
not often mentioned. While the mayor thinks that

Wall Street is the economic driver of this city,
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it's not often noticed that something like one out

of every seven people who are taxpayers and
residents of New York City work for not for profit
organizations. We all know that not for profit
organizations don't necessarily pay a lot of

money. We're not just talking about people who
work in youth programs and whatever, we're also
talking about people who work in museums, people
who work in dance companies and people who work in
small theater groups. Whereas Wall Street tax
dollars may be the economic engine of this city--

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: [interposing]
Ma'am, can you sum up?

B. EILEEN GRIGG: Yes. While they
may be the economic engine, | would argue that it
may be lower and moderate income people that are
the heart and soul of the city and that make it
such a unique and vibrant place for anyone to
live. Even poor people on the Lower East Side
have made a contribution. If any of you walk
around our neighborhood you'll see the pocket
parts that people dug out down on their hands and
knees to create some beauty and something special.

| hope that you won't allow this neighborhood to
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turn into high rises that only high income people
can live in. Because my own experience in my
building is there is continuing harassment of rent
stabilized tenants and apartments are
theoretically improved and more high priced people
move in. These people are just passing through.
They don't put roots in the community. They don't
contribute. They leave after a year or so.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ma'am, I'm
going to have to actually cut you off.
B. EILEEN GRIGG: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir?
THOMAS YU: My name is Thomas Yu.
| am a member of Community Board 3. I'm also a
lifelong resident of the Lower East Side. | grew
up in NYCHA public housing most of my life, as
well as tenement housing in Chinatown. I'm
currently the director of affordable housing
development in Asian Americans for Equality, as
well as leading the State Chartered Preservation
Corporation, downtown Manhattan CDC. I'm here in
support of this rezoning as a community board
member as well as someone who worked and lived in

the community all my life. I'm not going to go
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into detail, but | basically agree with what has
been said by our board chair, Dominic Pisciotta
and what Chris has said in terms of why we are in
support. I'm going to talk more about why it's

not such a great idea to extend what is a good
plan for East Village and Lower East Side which
conceivably can be a bad plan for Chinatown. Not
because it's essentially bad, but because it

hasn’'t been thought out. It hasn’'t been fleshed
out. It hasn’t gone through a public process.

For instance, the Lower East Side plan does not
talk about what you do with manufacturing zones
for example. Because simply there isn't a
manufacturing area in the existing 100 or so
blocks in the current plan. Chinatown does have a
manufacturing zone. We also have a lot of
commercial, mixed use and older tenement stock.
These are the kind of characteristics that require
further study. This conflict of pitting against

each other really does injustice to achieving a
quick consensus that we need to come together and
really launch this much needed Chinatown plan as
soon as possible. I'll end on time.

CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: | thoroughly
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appreciate that. Council Member Gerson has a
guestion.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Or two.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, has a
guestion.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: One
guestion to each of the last two withesses. Mr.
Yu, should we though not put in place a plan with
a commitment to review the issues you have raised,
such as manufacturing and the other issues of
concern to the Chinatown community outside of the
rezoned area? Would it be a good idea as part of
this to put in place and to assure the community
that a planning process for the areas not covered
will take place and will take place expeditiously
with all of the resources the community needs to
have an expeditious but thorough process? Is that
something we should achieve as a result of this
process we're in now?
THOMAS YU: Absolutely. People who
are opposing the plan, | do not discount and |
highly respect their frustrations about what is
happening in Chinatown. There's a real problem

and it is just as dire as the Lower East Side. |
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really respect that even though we're on opposing
sides of this rezoning plan. However, | think
that Chinatown really needs a dedicated plan that
is going to reflect all the nuances of the
differences between the two neighborhoods. Just
extending a blanket plan doesn’t do that justice
for Chinatown. We have to do that right away.
We're losing time as we fight each other when we
could be working together.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: To the
previous witness you talked about your experience
with harassment. Both Council Member Mendez and |
have raised this issue. We have been told in
response by some folks within the administration
that we don't need anti-harassment protection
within this area because we already have a law on
the books and the law works and we should just
apply the law. So we don't need any Lower East
Side/East Village anti-harassment protection.
From your experience does the current law work?
B. EILEEN GRIGG: Complete nonsense
that we don't need anti-harassment protection for
tenants in neighborhoods that are rapidly

gentrifying. We've seen 90,000 rent stabilized
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units disappear in this city in the past year.
That's not because people got richer.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
I'm going to call up the next panel on opposition.
There'll be two panels in a row. Roberto Ragone,
Sion Misrahi, Noelle Frieson, and Rabbi Spiegeel.
| would remind my colleague that we have 120
speakers still left to go. Even at two minutes,
we're here for another three hours. The thing |
want to make clear is people are leaving because
this is taking longer than some people can stay.
| think it's more important that people have a
right to be heard and that they don't have to
leave. So | would ask for my colleague's
cooperation.
COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: This is the
Lower East Side, we're used to these meetings.
CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: | would just
say, council member, that 15 people have already
left and had to submit their testimony into the
record. Again, | think it's more important that
everybody have an opportunity to publicly state
what their position is. It is more important to

hear from people, in my opinion.
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ROBERTO RAGONE: Before | start, |
just want to make sure everybody the three
documents. There is my testimony, a one-page
summary of my proposal, and photographs of Group
Use 11 folks who are in the area. Good morning.
My name is Roberto Ragone. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify today. | am the executive
director of the Lower East Side Business
Improvement District. We're a nonprofit
organization of over 600 members, property owners
and merchants beautifying and marketing the
neighborhood to improve the quality of life and
promote small businesses. As we have said in the
past, we commend and agree with many aspects of
the Department of City Planning's rezoning
proposal, but we've got a few very minor but
specific and essential revisions that are within
scope for the area south of Houston, north of
Grand, west of Essex, east of Chrystie inclusive.
| have statements from other BID members in
support of our position. The BID is concerned
about the future impact of C4-4A on the very soul
of the historically commercial character of the

Lower East Side. C4-4A will prohibit Group Use
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11, which would eliminate light manufacturing, the
artisan work, the craftsman, the jewelry makers,

the customized clothing makers and the book
